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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas

We have sudiled the accompanying financial stoements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the apgregale remaining fund information of the Town of Ransom
Canyon, Texas as of and for the year ended Scptember 30, 2018, and the refated notes to the financial stalcments, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial stalements as listed in the table of contents,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles gencrally aceepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implemeniation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparetion end fair presentation of financial statcments that are free from material misstatement, whether duc
to fraud or esor,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our sudit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of America. Those standards require thal we plan and perform the sudit to
obitain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstalement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounls and disclosurcs in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asscssments, the audilor considers intemal control relevant Lo the
enlity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An sudit also includes evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie 1o provide a basis for our audit opinions,
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred (o above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
gavernmental activitics, the business-type activitics, the aggregale discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas as of September 30, 2018, and the respective changes In
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in eccordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepied in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis,
budgetary comparison information, Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Required Ratios, the Schedule of Pension
Contributions, Schedule of Changes in OPEB Lisbility and Required Ratios, and the Schedule of OPEB Contributions on pages 2
through 9 and 45 through 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, afthough not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted
in the United States of Ametica, which consisted of inquirics of management about the mcthods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consisiency with management's responses 10 our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we oblained during our audit of the basic finencial statements. We do not cxpress an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedurcs do nol provide us with sufficicent evidence 10 express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information
As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2017 the City adopled new accounting guidance, GASBS No. 75, Accounting
and Financlal Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Ovur opinion is not modificd with respect to this matter.

David L Heutler PC
November 26, 2018



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

As management of the Town of Ransom Canyon (the City), we offer readers of the City’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018. This discussion and analysis is designed to provide an
objective and easy to read analysis of the City's financial activities based on currently known
facts, decisions or conditions. [t is intended to provide a broad overview using a short-term and
long-term analysis of the City's activities based on information presented in the financial report
and fiscal policies that have been adopted by the Council. Specifically, this section is designed to
assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, provide an overview of the City's
financial activity, identify changes in the City's financial position (its ability to address the next
and subsequent year challenges), identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the
adopted budget) and identify individual fund issues or concerns. As with other sections of this
financial report, the information contained within this Management Discussion & Analysis
(MD&A) should be considered only a part of a greater whole. The reader of this statement
should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the notes that are
provided in addition to this MD&A.

Key Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2018 by $3,978,690 (net position). Of this amount, $453,926 (unrestricted
net position) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
Net position increased by $31,384 for the year ended September 30, 2018, a 0.8%
increase over the previous year,

¢ The City’s total assets decreased by $267,148,; a 5.1% decrease from the prior fiscal year.
The City's liabilities decreased by $382,734; a 26.4% decrease from the prior fiscal year.

e The City’s enterprise fund ended the year with an operating income of $217,063 and a
change in net position after transfers of $55,992.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of two parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section) and
the basic financial statements. This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the City’s
basic financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the
financial statements.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both
short-term and long-term information about the City's overall financial status.

* The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of
the City, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements.

* The governmental funds statements tell how basic services like administration and public
safety services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future
spending.

e Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about
the activities the City operates like businesses, such as water, sewer and sanitation
Services.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

e Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which
the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City’s financial position, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The two
government-wide statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. The
Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows and outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Net position is
one way to measure the City's financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in
the City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial position is improving or
deteriorating. The Statement of Activities presents information on how the City’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
taken into account regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave). Both the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities are prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting as
opposed to the modified accrual basis used in governmental fund financial statements.

Other nonfinancial factors should also be taken into consideration, such as changes in the City’s
property tax base and the condition of the City’s infrastructure (i.e. roads and streets, sidewalks,
etc.) to assess the overall health or financial condition of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two
kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental Activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including
the general administration, police, fire, streets, library, and parks. Property taxes, RV lot
revenue, and franchise fees finance most of these activities.

» Business-type Activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most
of the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s water and sewer system and
sanitation solid waste collection are reported here.

All of these activities are collectively referred to in the financial statements as those of the
primary government.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not
the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond
covenants. However, the City establishes other funds to help it control and manage money for
particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes,
grants and other money. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City's two
kinds of funds — governmental and proprietary — utilize different accounting approaches.

» Governmental funds — The majority of the City's basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and
the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Essentially the same
functions are reported in the governmental funds as in the governmental activities
section of the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year., Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. These funds are reported
using an accounting method identified as the modified accrual basis of accounting,
which measures cash and all other finrancial assets that can readily be converted into
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. By comparing information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide statements, readers may better understand the long-
term effect of the government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities,

¢ The City maintains a single governmental fund which is considered to be a major fund.
Information for the General Fund is presented in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance.

o Proprietary funds — Services for which the City charges customers a fee generally are
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary fund financial statements, like the government-
wide statements, provide both short-term and long-term financial information. The
City’s proprietary fund is an enterprise fund, which is used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail, such as cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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o The City maintains a single enterprise fund. The City uses enterprise funds to account
for its water and sewer services and sanitation (solid waste disposal) services. The fund
provides the same type of information as the government-wide statements, only in more
detail. It is also considered to be a major fund of the City.

* Fiduciary funds — The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others,
such as the scholarship fund. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used only for their intended purpose and by those to whom
the assets belong. The City excludes these activities from the government-wide financial
statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide disclosures and additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the financial information presented in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements,

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information regarding the City’s budgetary comparative information for
the general fund and information about the City’s net pension liability and pension contributions.
This information follows the notes to the financial statements.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE - Governmeni-wide Financial Analysis

The City’s combined net position was $3.979 million as of September 30, 2018. Analyzing the
net position and net expenses of the governmental and business-type activities separately, the
business-type activities net position is $2.849 million. This analysis focuses on the net position
(table 1) and changes in general revenues (table 2) and significant expense of the City's
governmental and business-type activities.

A significant portion of the City’s net position (approximately 80.8%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment); less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services
10 citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The following table provides a summary of the City’s
net position for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
Table 1
Summary of Net Position
G | Activiti Dusiness-tvpe Activit Toul
2009 20ms 2017 2018 a7 2018

Current and other asseis $ 3195607 § 10857441 % 1,306,64092 § 1389,111.8% $ 1,618,60699 § 149768630
Capital assets 1,57,19324 _ 1,547,02847 _ 208568643 _ 1963,623.59 _ 3,656.879.67 _ 3.510.652.06

Total assets 1,883,15931  1,655,60288 339232735  3,352,73548  52754B6.66  5,008,338.36
Deferred outflows of resources 94.474.60 27,006.64 27,405.81 10,672.32 121,880.41 37.678.96
Current liabilities 220,952.46 23.012.61 191,072.23 189,774.31 412,024.69 212,786.92
Long-term lisbilities 602,714.80 530,238.00 __ 435321.81 324302.54 _ 1,038,036.61 854,540.63

Total liabilities 823,667.26 553,250.70 626,394.04 514,07685  1,450,061.30  1,067,327.55

Net position

Net investment in capital assels 1,571,193.24  1,547,02847  1,700,68643  1,668,623.59  3271,879.67  3,215652.06
Restricted 8572743 309,11135 85,727.43 309,111.35
Unrestricted (417,226.59) __ (417.669.65) _ 1.006,925.26 871,596.01 589,698.67 453,926.36

Total net position $ 1,153.966.65 S 1,129.158.82 $ 2,793.319.12 § 2.849.330.95 § 3.947.305.77 § 3.978.689.77
Governmental Activities
The City’s governmental activities revenues were up by $41,393 or approximately 5.0% from the
prior fiscal year. The increase was due primarily to property taxes, insurance claims and the sale
of old equipment. Governmental expenditures were up by $31,839 or 2.8% over the previous
year. The most significant governmental expenses for the City are government administration
and public safety which includes police and fire department.

Table 2
Governmental Activity Revenues
2017 2018
Property taxes (including penalty and interest) § 72844300 § 738231.62
Permits 10,482.50 6,719.95
Municipal court revenue 1,967.10 613.10
Franchise fees 26,327.27 31,569.51
Library revenue 7,990.00 7,470.00
R V storage revenue 17,088.34 16,593.51
Interest revenue 2,519.67 3,542.35
Tax certificates 564.00 299.00
Sales tax revenue 10,679.09 12,486.83
Grant revenue 10,000.00 10,300.00
Other revenues 15,643.95 4527225
§ 831,70492 § 873,098.12
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Business-type Activities

Total revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $1,197,402 for the year ended
September 30, 2018. Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were $866,410 for the year,
resulting in an income before transfers of $330,992.

Charges for services were up $15,237 or 1.3% over the previous year. Water purchases from the
City of Lubbock were up $21,246 from the previous year. Water revenues and water purchases
were up for the year with approximately $3.25 million more gallons consumed in 2018.

Table 3
Changes in Net Position
2012 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
Revenues;
Program revenucs:

Charges for services s 1048250 $ 6,71995 $ 106580675 $ 1071,66046 $ 107628925 § 107838041
Grants and contributions;

Operating 17,990.00 17,770.00 17,990.00 17,770.00

Capital = -

General revenues:

Property taxes 728,443.00 738,231.62 102,719.61 101,405.84 831,162.61 839,637.46
Franchise fees 26,327.27 31,569.51 26,321.27 31,569.51
Other 48.462.15 78,807.04 13,638.43 24,335.68 62,100.58 103,142.72

Total Revenues 831,704.92 873,098.12 1,182,164.79 1,197.401.98 2,013,269.71 2,070,500.10

Expenses:

General government 35931302 392,566.54 3159313.12 392,566.54
Operations 167359,72 173,608.05 167,359.72 173,608.05
City Court 3,395.67 3,946.52 3,395.67 3194652
Public safety 399,388.10 371,002.51 399,388.10 371,002.51
Public works 176,844.69 191,261.84 176,844.69 191,261.84
Library 2993242 36,946.45 29,932.42 36,946.45
Emergency operation cenler 4,632.83 3,374.04 4,632.83 3137404
Water purchases 358,700.26 379,946.61 358,700.26 379.946.61
Water, sewer and sanitation 460,133.00 474,650.63 460,133.00 474,650.63
Interest 14.539.92 11,812.91 14,539.92 11,812.91

Total Expenses 1,140,866.55 1,172,705.95 833.373.18 866.410.15 1.974,239.73 2,019,116.10
Change in net position

before transfers (309,161.63) (299,607.83) 348,791.61 330,991.83 39,629.98 31,384.00
Transfers 325,000.00 275.000.00 {325,000.00) (275.000.00) - -
Change in net position 15,838.37 {24,607.83) 23,791.61 §5,991.83 39,629.98 31,384.00
Net position, October 1 unadjusicd 1,156,338.42 1.153,966.65 2,773.681.18 2,793.339.12 3,930,019.60 3.947.305.77
Implementation of GASB No. 75 (18,210.14) . {4,133.67) - (22,341.81) -
Net position, October 1 adjustcd 1,138,128.28 1,153,966.65 2,769,547.51 2,793,339.12 3,907,675.79 1.947,305.77
Net position, September 30 $ 115396665 §$ 1,129358.82 § 2.703.339.12 § 2.849.330.95 3 3.947305.77 § 3,978.680.77
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of the 2018 fiscal year, the City had $3.511 million invested in a broad range of fixed
assets, including buildings, streets, water and sewer lines and equipment, vehicles, police and fire

department equipment.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Nct of Accumulated Depreciation)

Govemmental Business-type
Activitics Activities Total
20017 2018 2017 g 2017 2018

Land $ 4623000 S 4623000 § ] $ 4623000 §  46,230.00

Buildings 494.216.81 487,111.12 306,800.47 318,427.54 801,017.28 805,538.66

Street and infrastructurc 675,526.01 698.631.21 675,526.01 698,631.21

Improvements 191,077.92 154,619.93 191,077.92 154,619.93

Vehicles and equipment 164,142.50 160,436.21 23,039.33 23,039.33 187,181.83 183,475.54

Water and sewer system 1,755,846.63 1,622,156.92 _ 1,755.846.63 1.622,156.72

Totals $ 157119324 §$ 154702847 § 208568643 $ 1963.623.59 § 3.656879.67 § 3.510.652.06
Debt
At year-end, the City had $295,000 in debt outstanding as compared to $385,000 at the end of the
prior fiscal year a decrease of approximately 23.4%. The City retired $90,000 in bonds. Table 5
indicates the outstanding debt at September 30, 2017 and 2018.
Table §
Quistanding Dcbt
Govemmental Business-type
Activilies Activities Total
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

General Obligation

Refunding Bands

Series 2010 3 - s - S 38500000 S 295000.00 $ 385000.00 S  295000.00

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s original budget was adopted prior to the beginning of the fiscal year and was amended
during the year. For the year ended September 30, 2018 governmental revenues came in over the
budgeted amount by $93,308 while expenditures were $86,390 under the budgeted amount.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year
2018-2019 budget, tax rate, and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities. Stable
property valuations for the 2018-2019 fiscal year coupled with a smell amount of growth within
the City will help accomplish one of its top short-term goals, building cash for future capital
improvement projects.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact Elena Quintanilla, at the Town of Ransom Canyon, 24 Lee Kitchens Drive,
Ransom Canyon, Texas 79366.



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Primary Government
Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and cash in bank 96,709.41 $ 979,067.05 $ 1,075776.46
Receivables
Taxes 3,467.53 3,467.53
Other governments 1,229.56 1,229.56
Franchise fees 7,167.91 7,167.H
Custemer accounts, net 100,933.49 100,933.49
Restricted Assets
Cash and cash in bank 309,111.35 309,111.35
Capital Assets, nondepreciable
Land 46,230.00 46,230.00
Capital Assets, (net of accumulated
- depreciation)
Buildings 487,111.12 310,466.85 797,677.97
Streets and infrastructure 698,631.21 698,631.21
Improvements 154,619.93 154,619.83
Vehicles, equipment and machinery 160,436.21 20,735.40 181,171.61
Water and sewer system 1,632,421.34 1,632,421.34
Total Assets 1,655,602.88 3,352,735.48 5,008,338.36
Deferred Quiflows of Resources
Deferred amount on refunding 4,397.98 4,397.98
Deferred pension contribution 24,722.86 5,755.93 30,478.79
Deferred QPEB 2,283.78 518.41 _2,802.19
27,006.64 10,672.32 37,678.96

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
10




TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Primary Government
Governmental  Business-type
Aclivities Activities Total
Liabllities

Accounts payable 17,040.54 56,936.34 73,976.88
Accrued compensation payable 5,972.07 1,180.66 7,152.73
Utility deposits 35,540.00 35,540.00
Payable from restricted assets

Accrued interest payable 1,117.31 1,117.31
Non-current Liabilities

Net pension liability 508,259.25 119,540.38 628,799.63

OPESB liability 20,978.84 4,762.16 26,741.00

Due within one year:

General obligation refunding bonds payable 95,000.00 85,000.00
Due in more than one year:
General obligation refunding bonds payable 200,000.00 200,000.00
Total Liabilities 563,250.70 514,076.85 1,067,327.55
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 1,547,028.47 1,668,623.59 3,215,652.06
Restricted for debt service 309,111.35 309,111.35
Unrestricted (417,669.65) 871,596.01 453,926.36

Total Net Position $ 1,120358.82 $ 284933095 §$ 3,978689.77

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1




TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operaling Capital Primary Govemment
Charges for Grantsand Granisand Govemmental Business-type
Eunclions / Programs Expenseg Services  Conlributions Contribulions  Activitles Aclivities Total
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General govemnment $ 39256654 § 671995 § $ $ (385,846.59) § $ (385,846.59)
Operations 173,608.05 {173,6808.05) (173,608.05)
City court 3,946.52 (3,948.52} {3,946.52)
Public safety - police depariment 297,812.98 (297,812.98) {297.812.98)
Public safety - fire department 73,189.53 10,300.00 (62,809.53) (62,889.53)
Public works - street depariment 191,261.84 (191,261.84) (191,261.84)
Library 36,946.45 7,470.00 (29,476.45) {29,476.45)
Emergency operations 3,374.04 (3,374.04) {3,374.04)
Total Govemmental Activities 1,172,705.95 671995 17,770.00 . (1,148,216.00) - {1,148,215.00)
Business-type Activilies:
Water and sewer fund 866,410.15 1,071,660.46 205,250.31 205,250.31
Total Business-type Activities 866,410.15 _ 1,071,6680.46 - - - 205,250.31 205,250.31
Total Primary Government $2039,116.10 $1,078.380.41 $17.770.00 § - {1,148,216.00) 205,250.31 {842,965.69)
Praperty taxes 738,231.62 101,405.84 839,637.46
Franchiss fees 31,569.51 31,569.51
Sales tax revenue 12,486.83 12,466.83
Intarest revenue 3,5642.35 24,335.60 27,878.03
Transfers 275,000.00 {275,000.00) -
RV storage ravenue 16,593.51 16,592.54
Tax certificates 299.00 299.00
Other 45,885.35 45 885.35
Total general revenues and transfers 1,123,608.17 149,258.48 974,349.69
Changs in net position {24,607.83) 55,991.83 31,384.00
Net position, October 1 unadjusted 1172176.79  2,797,472.79  3,960,649.58
Implamentation of GASB No. 75 (18,210.14) {4,133.67) {22,343.81)
Net position, October 1 adjusted 1,153,966.65 _2,793.338.12 _3.947,305.77
Net position, September 30 $1129358.82 $2,849330.85 $3,978689.77

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemants.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Assets
Cash and cash In bank
Receivables (nel of allowance for uncollectibles)
Taxes
Franchise fees
Other governments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balance
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13

Total
Governmental

General Funds
$ 9670941 $ 96,700.41
3,467.53 3,467.53
7,167.91 7.167.91
1,229.56 1,229.56
$ 108574.41 $ 108,574.41
$ 147.040.54 $ 17,040.54
17.040.54 17,040.54
3,467.53 3,467.53
3,467.53 3,467.53
88,066.34 88,066.34
88,066.34 88,066.34
$ 108,574.41 $ 108,574.41




TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE BALANCE SHEET
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Tota! fund balance per balance sheet $ 88,066.34

Capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. These assels consist of:

Land 46,230.00
Buildings 634,277.45
Streets and infrastructure 2,993,998.78
Improvements 744.,884.34
Vehicles, equipment and machinery 1,145,260.76
Accumulated depreciation (4.017.622.86)
1,547,028.47
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and are therefore deferred in the funds and recognized as revenue in the
statement of activities,
Deferred property taxes 3,467.53
Deferred outflows related to pensions are not financial resources and
therefore are not reparted in governmental funds 24,722.86
Deferred outflows related to other post employment benefits are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in governmental funds 2,283.78
Long-term liabilities of governmental funds are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds. These
consist of:
Accrued compensation (5,972.07)
Net pension liability (509,259.25)
OPEB Hiability (20,978.84)
Net position of governmental activities $ 1,129,358.82

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Total
Governmental
General Funds
Revenues
Property taxes $ 736,445.98 $ 736,445.98
Penalties and interest 3,350.92 3,350.92
Permits 6,719.95 6,719.95
Franchise fees 31,569.51 31,569.51
Library revenue 7,470.00 7.470.00
RV storage revenue 16,593.51 16,593.51
Municipal court revenue €13.10 613.10
Tax certificates 295.00 299.00
Interest ravenue 3,542.35 3,542.35
Sales tax revenue 12,486.83 12,486.83
Grant revenue 10,300.00 10,300.00
Miscellaneous 44,917.05 44,917.05
Total Revenues 874,308.20 874,308.20
Expenditures
Current:
General government 370,779.20 370,779.20
Operations 173,269.01 173,2569.01
City court 3,046.52 3,946.52
Public safety - police department 270,678.45 270,578.45
Public safety - fire department 54,262.29 54,262.29
Public works - street department 86,490.87 86,490.87
Library 36,216.60 36,216.60
Emergency operations 1,471.90 1,471.90
Capital outlay 155,350.17 155,350.17
Total Expenditures 1,152,365.01 1,1562,365.01
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (278,056.81) (278,056.81)
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers in 275,000.00 275,000,00
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 275,000.00 275,000.00
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,056.81) {3,056.81)
Fund Balance, October 1 91,123.15 91,123.15

Fund Balance, September 30

$ 86,066.34 $ 88,066.34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $  (3,056.81)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the

current period.
Capital outlay 155,350.17
Depreciation expense (179,514.94)
(24,164.77)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reperied as revenues in the funds.
Propersty taxes {1,565.28)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in govemmental funds.
Accrued compensation {829.72)
Pension expense 5,008.75
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (24.607.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash in bank

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Customer accounts
Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets
Rastricted Assets
Cash and cash ip bank

Total Restricted Assets

Capital Assels
Water and sewer system
Buildings
Furniture
Accumulated depreciation
Total Capital Assets

Total Non-current Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred interest on refunding
Deferred pension contribution
Deferred OBEB

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Enterprise Total
$ 979,067.05 $ 979,067.05
100,933.49 100,933.49
1,080,000.54 1,080,000.54
309,111.35 309,111.35
309,111.35 309,111.35
4,710,858.85 4,710,858.85
318,427.54 318,427.54
23,038.33 23,039.33
{3.088,702.13) _(3,088,702.13)
1.963,623.59 1,963,623.59
2,272,734.94 2,272,734.94
3,352,735.48 3,352,735.48
4,397.98 4,397.98
5,755.93 5,755.93
518.41 518.41
$ 1067232 § 1067232




TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Enterprise Total
Liabilities
Current Liabilitles (payable from cument assets)
Accounts payable $ 5603634 % 5693634
Accrued compensation payable 1,180.66 1,180.66
Utility deposits 35,540.00 35,540.00
Total Current Liabllities (payable from
current assets) 93,657.00 93,657.00
Current Liabilities (payable from restricted assets)
Accrued interest payable 1,117.31 1,117.31
General obligation refunding bonds payable, current 95,000.00 95,000.00
Total Current Liabliities (payable from
restricted assets) 96,117.31 96,117.31
Non-current Liabilities
Net pension Hability 119,540.38 119,540.38
OPEB liability 4,762.16 4,762.16
General obligation refunding bonds payable, non-current __200,000.00 200,000.00
Total Non-current Liabilities 324,302.54 324,302.54
Total Liabilities 514,076.85 514,076.85
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 1,668,623.59 1,668,623.59
Restricted for debt service 309,111.35 309,111.35
Unrestricted 871,585.01 871.596.01
Total Net Position $2,849,330.95 $ 2,849,330.95

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Revenues
Water
Sewer
Sanitation
Mosquito spraying
Penally revenue
Tap connect fees
Tum on revenue
Sewer revenue - Buffalo Lake
Miscellaneous revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Water purchases
Payroll
Utilities
Chemicals
Supplies, repairs and maintenance
Fees, permits, inspections
Depreciation
Lab charges
Mosquito spraying expense
Insurance
Solid waste collection contract

Total Operating Expenses
Operating income

Non-operating Revenue (Expense)

interest income
Tax receipts
Interest expense

Total Non-operating Revenue (Expense)

Income Before Operating Transfers
Operating transfers out

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, October 1 unadjusted

Implementation of GASB No. 75
Total Net Position, October 1 adjusted
Total Net Position, September 30

Business-type
Aclivities

Enterprise
Eunds

Total

$ 656,769.70 $ 656,769.70

148,658.48 148,658.48
149,690.99 149,690.99
5,932.00 5,932.09
6,340.60 6,340.60
3,200.00 3,200.00
1,750.00 1,750.00
99,237.91 99,237.91
80.69 80.69
1,071,660.46  1,071,660.46
379,946.61 379,946.61
139,901.17 139,901.17
37,148.31 37,148.31
4,000.00 4,000.00
29,737.72 29,737.72
3,471.75 3.471.75
133,689.91 133,689.91
6,149.04 6,149.04
4,446.89 4,446.89
1,377.00 1,377.00
114,728.84 114,728.84
854,597.24 854,607.24
217,063.22 217,063.22
24,335.68 24,335.68
101,405.84 101,405.84
(11,812.91) (11,812.91)
113,928.61 113,928.61
330,991.83 330,991.83
(275,000.00) __ (275,000.00)
55,991.83 55,991.83
2,797,472.79  2,797,472.79
(4,133.67) (4,133.67)
2,793,338.12 __ 2,793,330.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PRCPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments to employees

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Non-capital
Financing Activities
Operating transfers out
Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Non-capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Tax receipls
Repayment of long-term debt
Interest payment long-term debt
Net Cash Provided By (Used For} Capitzal
and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received

Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities

Net increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30

Cash and cash in bank
Restricted cash and cash in bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

Business-type

Activities
Enterprise
Funds Total
$ 1,080,226.50 $ 1,080,226.50
(590,493.66) (590,493.86)
(139,858.08) (139,858.08)
349,874.56 349,874.56
{275,000.00) {275,000.00)
{275,000.00) (275,000.00)
(11,627.07) {11,627.07)
101,405.84 101,405.84
(90,000.00) (90,000.00)
{10,302.00) {10,302.00)
{10,523.23) {10,523.23)
24,335.68 24,335.68
24,335.68 24,335.68
88,687.01 88,687.01

1,199,491.3¢ _ 1,199.491.39
$ 1.286,178.40 §$ 1,288.176.40

$ 979,067.058 $ 979,067.05
308,111.35 309,111.35

$ 1,288,178.40 § 1,288,178.40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Business-type

Activities
Enterprise
Funds Total
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities
Operating income 217,063.22 § 217,063.22
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 133,689.91 133,689.91
Changes in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 6,216.04 6,216.04
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows - pension 15,554.92 15,554.92
{Increase) decrease in deferred outflows - OPEB {673.22) (673.22)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (9,487.70) (9,487.70)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensation 1,180.66 1,180.66
increase (decrease) in net pension liability {16,802.57) {16,802.57)
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability 783.30 783.30
Increase (decrease) in utility deposits 2,350.00 2,350.00
Net cash provided by operating activities 349,874.56 $ 349,B874.56

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Pension
Trust Fund
Assets

Current Assets
Equity in investments $ 77.011.98
Total Assets $ 77011.98

Net Position
Held in trust for pension benefits $__77,011.98

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Pension
Trust Fund
Additions
Contributions 3 -
Net increase in fair value of investments 9,307.64
Total additions 9,307.64
Deductions
Benefits -
Total deductions -
Change in net position 9,307.64
Net position held in trust for pension benefits, October 1 67,704.34
Net position held in trust for pension benefits, September 30 $ 77,011.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Town of Ransom Canyon, Texas (the City) operates under a mayor — council (5 council members)
form of government and provides the following services: Public Safety (Police and Fire protection), Streets,
Sanitation, Public Improvements {Water and Sewer Systems), Library, Planning and Zoning, and General
Administrative Services. Volunteers staff the fire and ambulance services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared to conform with Accounting Principles Generally
Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. Generally accepted
accounting principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institte of Centified Public Accountants in the
publication entitled Audits of State and Locel Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (when applicable). GASB is the accepled standard setiing body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The City's reporting entity applies all relevant
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

Financial information of the City is presented as follows:

s Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the City's financial activities.

e  Basic Financial Statements: Government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net
position and a statement of activities to display information about the City as a whole.

These statements report all of the non-fiduciary activities of the govemment.
Governmental activities are reported separately from business-type activities.
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
whereas business-type activities are normally supported by fees and charges from
services and are usually intended by management to be financisally self-sustaining.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the
City's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific program or function. Program revenues include (a) charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or program and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes and
other items, are presented as general revenues,

o  Fund Financial Statements consist of a series of statements focusing on information about the
City’s major governmental and enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are presented for
the governmental and enterprise funds.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City (the
primary government) and its component units, if applicable. The City's financial statements include the
accounts of all City operations, Component units are organizations for which the City is financially
accountable and all other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
City are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements t¢ be misleading or
incomplete. Financial accountability exists if the City appoints a voting majority of an organization’s
govemning board and is either able to impose it’s will on that organization or there is a potential for the
organizations to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City.

24



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30,2018

The City may be financially accountable for govemmental organizations with a separately elected
governing board, a governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed board that is
fiscally dependent on the City. The financial statement of the component units may be discretely presented
in a separate column from the primary government or blended with the financial statements of the primary
government. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the City’s reporting entity,
as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, include whether:

The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name)

The City holds the corporate powers of the organization

The City appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

The City is able to impose its will on the organization

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City
There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

Based on the aforemeationed criteria, the Town of Ransom Canyon has no component units.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the City as a whole) and fund
financial statements. The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary govemment.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. The
previous reporting model emphasized fund types (the total of all funds of a particular type), in the new
reporting model as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 the focus is either the City as a whole or major
individual funds (within the fund financial statements).

The government-wide siatement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
functional categery (Public Safety, Public Works, elc.) or activity are offset by program revenues, Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity. Indirect expenses are
allocated based on the annual cost allocation plan. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function or activity, 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements
of a particular function or activity and 3) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the capital
requirements of a particular function or activity. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

The net cost (by function or business-type activity) is normally covered by general revenue (property
taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

Separate fund based financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. The major governmental fund is the general fund. GASB
Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category for the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements, if applicable.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in

aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund
financial statements is on the major individual funds of the governmental and business-type categories.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed and compared to enhance the
usefulness of the information.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting
relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund level financial statemenis are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they
are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within
the current period or soon enough thereafier to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Grant revenues availability period is generally considered to be one yeer. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are
recorded only when the liability has matured and payment is due.

Ad valorem and franchise tax revenues in the General Fund are recognized under the susceptible to accrual
concept. Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, contributions, and miscellaneous
revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash as the resulting receivable is immaterial.
Investment earnings are recorded as eamed since they are measurable and available. In applying the
susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirement of the
numerous individual programs are used as guidance, There are, however, essentiafly two types of these
revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be
paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other,
monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to
comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Business-type activities and all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation
of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund-type operating statements present
increases {e.g., revenues) and decreases (¢.g., expenses) in net total position. Proprietary funds distinguish
operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund'’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds are charges
to customer for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expense, and depreciation on capital assts. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The following major funds are used by the City:
1. Governmental Funds:

The following is a description of the Governmental Funds of the City:
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

8. General Fund accounts for several of the City's primary services (Public Safety, Public
Works, General Administration, etc.) and is the primary operating unit of the City.

b. Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term debt of the governmental funds, when applicable.

2. Proprietary Funds:
The following is a description of the meajor Proprietary Funds of the City:

a. The enterprise fund accounts for the operation of the City’s water and sewer utility and
solid waste pickup. Activities of the fund include administration, operation and
maintenance of the water and sewer system and billing and collection activities. The
Fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-ierm
debt principat and interest for revenue bonds and cbligations under capital leases when
due throughout the year. All costs are financed through charges made to utility
customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted if necessary to ensure integrity of
the Fund.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

¢  Fiduciary Trust Fund — Account for the resources legally held in trust or agency capacity for
others and which therefore cannot be used to support the government’s own programs. The
fiduciary fund category includes a pension trust fund and an agency fund to account for
resources held in a purely custodial capacity for individuals or organizations outside the City.

D. Encumbrances

The City does not use an encumbrance system of accounting.

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City maintains a pooled cash account that is shared by the General Fund and Enterprise Fund. Each
fund's portion of this pooled cash is allocated through its cash and cash in bank account on the balance
sheet or statement of net position. The funds pool their operating cash for the purpose of cash management
and to increase income through combined investment activities. In addition, non-pooled cash is separately
held and reflected in each fund’s balance sheet when applicable,

The cash and cash equivalents reflected in the statement of cash flows for the Proprietary Funds are made
up of cash on hand, cash in the City’s depository bank, and certificates of deposit. Investments are
considered to be cash equivalents if they are highly liquid with maturities of three months or less. Cash
deposits and investments are reported at carrying amount (cost), which equals fair value, in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 31, At year end September 30, 2018 the City had no invesiments. The Texas
Public Funds Investment Act governs items such as investment strategies and policies, training for
investment officers, reporting requirements, and types of investments allowed. See Note 2.

F. Prepaid Items

Prepaid balances, when applicable, are for payments made by the City in the cusmrent year to provide
services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

G. Inventories

Inventories in Governmental and Proprietary Funds consist of expendable supplies. These amounts are not
significant and thus no provision has been made for these amounts in the financial statements. Inventory
items are expensed when purchased.

H. Interfund Recejvables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables are eliminated at the end of the fiscal year by reclassifying them as
operating transfers if management does not expect the receiving fund to be able to repay the payable within
a reasonable time. Interfind transfers are made to cover expenditures in funds with inadequate cash
balances to cover the expenses. These transfers are treated as operating transfers and are inciuded in the
results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

I. Capital Assets

Property, plant and equipment purchased or acquired is carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Contributed fixed assets are carried at estimated fair market value on the date donated. Public domain
(infrastructure) fixed assets consisting of roads, streets and sidewalks have been recorded at estimated
historical cost. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses; rencwals and betterments are
capitalized.

Assets capitalized have an original cost of $2,500 or more and a life expectancy of over three years.
Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and land improvements 10 — 40 years

Streets 30 years

Water and sewer system 0 — 40 years

Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
J. mpen Absence:

Full-time, permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums
depending on tenure with the City. The City’s policy allows full time, permanent employees to accumulate
a limited amount of earned but unused vacation leave. Full time, permanent employees are allowed to
accrue up to twenty days of sick leave. It is the City's policy to not pay employees for unused sick leave
upon separation of service from the City. For the year ended September 30, 2018 compensated absences
relating to vacation and comp time amounted to $7,152.73.

K. Restricted Assets

Certain resources of the enterprise fund have been set aside for construction and repayment of debt and are
classified as restricted on the balance sheet or statement of net position because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond ordinances. The City records these
reserves to indicate that a portion of cash and fund equity is legally segregated for a specific future use. At
September 30, 2018 the proprietary funds had $309,111.35 reserved for debt service. When an expense is
incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available it is the City’s policy to first
apply restricted resources to the expense.

L. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to fiscal year 2017 amounts to conform to the fiscal year 2018
presentation,
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M. Bond Issuance and Deferred Debt Expense

Bond and certificate of obligation issuance costs are expensed in the period incurred. The difference
between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of proprietary refunded debt is capitalized and
amortized over the terms of the respective bonds and certificates of obligation using the straight-line
method.

N. Capitalized Interest

In conformity with Financial Accounting Standards No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost,” the City
capitalized interest costs for business-type activities only, net of related interest earned, from the date of
borrowing until the projects acquired with those funds are ready for their intended use. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018 there were no capitalized interest costs.

0. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

P. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

in addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City currently has three itemns which qualify
for reporting in this category, contributions made to the pension plan and other post-employment benefits
in the 2018 calendar year and an unamortized interest amount which resulted from a bond refunding.

in addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City currently has no items, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item,
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds
report unavailable revenue from property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period when the amounts become available.

Q. Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance”. Fund equity
for all other reporting is classified as “net position™.

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources under the current financial resources
management focus of accounting. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are
classified as follows:
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Nonspendable — Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form (i.c., items that are not expected to be converted 1o cash) or (b) legatly
or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted ~ Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by the City Council. Approval of a resolution after a formal vote of the
City Council is required to establish a commitment of fund balance. Similarly, the City Council may only
modify or rescind the commitment by formal vote and adoption of a subsequent resolution.

Assigned — Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the City’s intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council, through City
Ordinance, has expressly delegated to the City Administrator the authority to assign funds for particular
purposes or through adopticn or amendment of the budget as intended for a specific purpose.

Unassigned — Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not
meet any of the above criterion. The City reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general
fund.

Flow Assumptions — When both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for use, it is the
City's policy to use restricted fund balance first, then unrestricted fund balance as needed. For unrestricted
amounts of fund balance, it is the City's policy to use fund balance in the following order: (1) Committed,
{2) Assigned, (3) Unassigned.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, in reporting which utilizes the economic resources
measurement focus. In the govemment-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following
categories:

Net investment jn capital assets - This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of debt that are atiributable

to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted net position - This category represents external restrictions imposed either: [) by creditors (such
as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 2) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position ~ This category represents the net position of the City which are not restricted for
any project or other purpose.

Flow Assumptions — The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

R. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the
Texas Municipal Retirement System {TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net
Position have been determined on the seme basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan
contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when
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contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

S. Other Post-Emplovment Benefits

The City provides a supplemental death benefit for retirees that is considered an other post-employment
benefit (OPEB) covered by GASB No. 75. This plan benefit is administered by TMRS. For purposes of
measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas Municipal
Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are
recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are
legally due. There are no investments related to this plan benefit.

2. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and investments can be subject to five types of risk which are examined in more detail as
follows:

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK OF BANK DEPOSITS — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of
a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require that all deposits in
financial institutions and investments be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations or obligations
of the State of Texas and its agencies that have a market value of not less than the deposit amounts. The
City’s deposits were fully insured or collateralized as required by state statutes at September 30, 2018. At
year-end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $1,384,737.81 and the respective bank balances
totaled $1,493,683.16. The City had no investments at September 30, 2018 however from time to time the
City may investment in certificates of deposit. The City’s deposits were covered by Federal Depository
Insurance in the amount of $250,000. The remainder was covered by collateral with a par value of
$2,090,000 and a market value of $2,164,022 at September 30, 2018 held by the bank's agent and pledged
to the Town of Ransom Canyon in accordance with State law.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK OF INVESTMENTS - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. This type of credit risk is inapplicable to the City’s
investments because the only investments are certificates of deposit as described above.

INTEREST RATE RISK — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. This type of risk is also inapplicable to the City because the only
investments are certificates of deposit whose value is not dependent upon the rate of interest.

CREDIT RISK - Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counterparts to an investment in
debt securities will not fulfill its obligation. The City's investment policy minimizes credit risk by limiting
investments to the safest types of securities.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atiributed to the
magnitude of the City’s investment in a single issuer. This type of risk is also inapplicable to the City
because the only investments are certificates of deposit.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates
will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. The City’s policy is not to invest in
foreign currencies which rules out any exposure to foreign currency risk.

Investments - Texas statutes authorize the types of investments allowable by the City. The City is
authorized to invest in U.S. Govermment obligations and ils agencies or instrumentalities, fully
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collateralized certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, and direct obligations of
cities within the State of Texas. The City is also authorized to invest in direct obligations of the State of
Texas or its agencies, obligations of states, agencies, counties, and other political subdivisions, reverse
repurchase agreements, prime domestic bankers' acceptances, money market funds, and govemment pools,

The City from time to time invests in certificates of deposit however at September 30, 2018 the City had no
investments in certificates of deposit. The City pools cash resources of its various funds in order to
facilitate the management of cash. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current
operating requirements.

3. Debt and Interest Expense
At September 30, 2018 debt outstanding consisted of the following individual issues:

Series 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued at an interest rate of 3.03%. Principal is due in
annual payments on February 15 and interest is due in semi-annual payments on February 15 and August
5. The balance at September 30, 2018 was $295,000 of which $95,000 is due within one year.

For the year ended September 30, 2018 the City paid interest in the amount of $10,302.00 with the accrual
basis interest expense being $11,812,91.

General Obligation Refunding Bonds

The General Obligation Refunding Bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing
power and the revenues of the Enterprise Fund for the payment of the debt obligations of the City. These
Bonds require the City to compute, at the time other taxes are levied, the rate of tax required to provide (in
each year certificates of obligation are outstanding) funds to pay interest and principal at maturity for any
amounts not paid from the revenues of the Enterprise Fund. These Bonds are secured both by a pledge of
ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable property within the City and by a lien on and pledge of revenues to
be gencrated by the Enterprise Fund.

Changes in Outstanding Debt

Transactions for the year ended September 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Amount
Balance Balance Due Within
10/1/2017 Additions Retirements 9/30/2018 One Year

General Obligation Refunding Bonds § 385,000.00 § - $ (90,000.00) § 29500000 § 95,000,00
Total Business-type Activities $ 385,000.00 $ - §_(90,000.00) § 295,000.00 $ 95,000.00

Annual Requirements to Retire Debt Obligations

The annua! aggregate maturities of the City’s debt for the years subsequent to September 30, 2018 are as
follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 b3 95,000.00 § 7,499.25 § 102,499.25
2020 100,000.00 4,545.00 104,545.00
2021 100,000.00 1,515.00 101,515.00

$ 29500000 $ 13,559.25 $ _ 308,559.25
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4. Deferred Compensation Plan

At one time the City offered its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code {IRC) Section 457. The plan permitted City empioyees to defer a portion of their
salary until future years, The City placed the deferred compensation plan assets into trust for the exclusive
benefit of plan participants and beneficiaries in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section
457 Deferred Compensation Plans. This plan is no longer offered by the City. The City has no
administrative involvement and does not perform the investing function for the plan. At September 30,
2018 the value of the investments in the plan was $77,011.98 as presented by the plan administrator.

5. loterfund Transfers

The purpose of these interfund transfers is to fund routine government operations. Interfund transfers
during the year ended September 30, 2018 were as follows:

Operating Operating
Fund Transfers In  Transfers Qut
General Fund $ 27500000 %
Enterprise Fund 275,000.00

$ 27500000 $_ 275,000.00

6. Accounts Receivable and Due From Other Governmenis

Accounts receivable for the City's governmental and business-type activities, including the applicable
allowance for uncollectible accounts at September 30, 2018 are as follows:

Accounts Allowance For
Receivable Uncollectible Total
Governmental activities:
General Fund:
Property taxes $ 346753 § - $ 3,467.53
Franchise fees 7,167.91 7,167.91
Other governments 1,229.56 - 1,229.56
Total Governmentaf activities 11,865.00 - 11,865.00
Business-type activities:
Water, sewer and sanitation customers 118,056.23 (17,122.74) 100,933.49
Total Business-type activities 118,056.23 (17,122.74) 100,933.49
Total accounts receivable $ 12992123 § (17,122.74) §  112,798.49

7. Leases and Lease Purchase Agreements
The City currently leases office equipment under certain operating type leases. These leases are annual

leases and expire after 12 months. Rental payments under these operating leases totaled $5,908.27 for the
year ended September 30, 2018.
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8. Contingent Liabilities

The City participates in certain federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Any liability for reimbursement, which
may arise as the result of these audits, is not believed 1o be significant.

From time to time the City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental
operations. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of City
management, after consultation with legal counsel, these legal proceedings are not likely to have a
significant adverse impact on the affected funds of the City.

9, Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Plan Description

The Town of Ransom Canyon participates as one of 883 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit pension plan administered by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS).
TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act,
Subtitle G, Title 8 Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement
system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration
and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the
advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of
Texas. TMRS’s defined benefit pension plan is a tax qualified plan under Section 4¢1(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code. TMRS issues a publically available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that
can obtained at www tmirs, com.

All eligible employees (full-time and employees who work in excess of 1,000 hours per year) of the City
are required to participate in TMRS.,

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the goveming
body of the city, within the options available in the governing state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions with interest and the
city-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may choose to
receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options. Members may also choose to receive a
portion of their benefit as a partial lump sum distribution (PLSD) in an amount equal to 12, 24, or 36
monthly payments which cannot exceed 75% of the total member deposits and interest.

Plan Year 2017 Plan Year2018

Employee deposit rate 6.0% 6.0%

Matching ratio (City to employee) 1.5t01 1.5t01

Years required for vesting 5 5

Service retirement eligibility

(expressed as age / years of service) 60/5, 0120 60/5, 0720

Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating, 100% Repeating,
Transfers Transfers

Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI
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Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2016 and 2017 valuation and measurement dates, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

12/312016 12/31/2017

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2 3

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 2 1

Active employees 11 i}

Total 15 15
Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6% or 7% of employee gross earnings, and
the city matching percentages are either 180%, 150% or 200%, both as adopted by the govemning body of
the city. Under state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by
the actvary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the Town of Ransom Canyon were required to contribuiite 6% of their annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the Town of Ransom Canyon were 15.54% (includes
0.21% for the supplemental death benefit) and 15.89% (includes 0.22% for the supplemental death benefit)
in calendar years 2017 and 2018, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 2018 were $85,974.05 (includes $1,182.73 for the supplemental death benefit) and were
equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Total Pension
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that date.

Actuarial assumptions:

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuations was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5% per year
Overalt payroll growth 3.0% per year

Investment Rate of Return 6.75% net of pension plan invesiment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%.

For Cities with fewer than twenty employees, more consesvative methods and assumptions are used. First,
lower termination rates are used for smaller cities, with maximum multipliers of 75% for employers with
less than 6 members, 85% for employers with 6 to 10 members, 100% for employers with 11 to 15
members, and 115% for employers with less than 100 members. There is also a load on the life expectancy
for employers with less than 15 active members. The life expectancy will be loaded by decreasing the
mortality rates by 1% for every active member less than 15. For example, an employer with 5 active
members will have the baseline mortality tables multiplied by 90% (10 active members times 1%). For
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underfunded plans, the maximum amortization period for amortizing gains and losses is decreased from
current levels by | year for each active member less than the 20 member threshold. For example, an
employer with 8 active members and a current maximum amortization period of 25 will use (25-(20-8)) =
13 year amortization period for the gain or loss in that year’s valuation. Under this policy, the lowest
amortization period will be 25-(20-1) = 6 years. Once the plan is overfunded, the amortization period will
revert back to the standard 25 years.

The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements, For disabled annuitants, the pender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables
with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by
103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. [n addition, 8 3% minimum montality rate is
applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a
fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

The actuarial assumptions were developed primarily from the actuarial investigation of the experience of
TMRS over the four year period from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2014, They were adopted
in 2015 and first used in the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality
assumption for healthy annuitants and Annuity Purchase Rate (APRs) are based on the Mortality
Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. In conjunction
with these changes first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, the system adopted the Entry Age
Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method and a one —time change to the amortization policy. Plan assets are
managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of
income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected retumns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. In determining their best
estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under the various alternative asset allocation
portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic mean (aggressive) without an adjustment for
time {conservative) and (2) the geometric mean (conservative) with an adjustment for time (aggressive).
The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class in the fiscal year
2018 are summarized in the following table;

Long-Term Expected
Target Real Rate of Retun
Domestic Equity 17.50% 4.55%
International Equity 17.50% 6.35%
Core Fixed Income 10.00% 1.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 3.90%
Real Retun 10.00% 3.80%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50%
Absolute Return 10.00% 3.75%
Private Equity 5.00% 7.50%

Total 100.00%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows

used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the
rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position was
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projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability.

Change in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease}
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balance at 12/31/16 $ 1,780,734 $ 1,059,203 $§ 721,531
Changes for the year:
Service cost 61,357 61,357
Interest 121,065 121,065
Change of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience (12,487) {12,487)
Changes of assumptions -
Contributions - employer 83,684 (83,684)
Contributions - employee 32,753 (32,753)
Net investment income 147,029 (147,029}
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (35,722) (35,722) -
Administrative expense (761) 761
Other changes (38) 38
Net changes 134,213 226,945 (92,732)
Balance at 12/31/17 § 1914947 § 1286148 $ 628,799

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net position liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as
well s what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-peint higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in ~ Current Single 1% Increase in
Discount Rate  Rate Assumption  Discount Rate
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
City's net pension liability § 872,99 $ 628,799 §$ 423,162

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at wway.tmrs. cont.

Pension ense Deferred Outflows urces and Defer of Resources Rela
Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the city recognized pension expense of $78,050.

At September 30, 2017, the city reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the {ollowing sources:
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Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
economic experience 3 (26,746.00) § -
Changes in actuarial assnmptions 30,708.00
Difference between projected and actual
investment eamings (35,677.00)
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date December 31, 2017 62,193.79 -
Total $ 30478.79 $ -

$62,193.79 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reducticon of the net pension liability for the
year ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended Dec 31:
2018 £ {925.00)
2019 (2,774.00)
2020 (14,272.00)
2021 (14,238.00)
2022 949.00

Thereafter (455.00)
Total ] (31,715.00)

10. Supplemental Death Benefit Plan

Plan Description

The City participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental Death Benefits
Fund (SDBF). The City elected by ordinance to provide group-term life insurance coverage to both current
and retired employees. Although it has no plans to do so, the City may terminate coverage under and
discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be
effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual eamings for the 12-month pericd
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other
postemployment benefit”, or OPEB.

The following summarizes the SDBF coverage provided by the City for the prior two years:

Plan Year 2017 Plan Year 2018
Active emplayees (yes or no) Yes Yes

Retirees (yes or no) Yes Yes
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Benefits Provided

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately egual to the
employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual eamings for the 12-month period
preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an “other
postemployment benefit”, or OPEB. As the SDBF covers both active and retiree participants, with no
segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are
gccumulated).

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

2017
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 3
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 1
Active employees 1l
Total 15
Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for
the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for
the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees" entire careers.

Contributions are made monthly to the SDBF based on the cavered payroll of the City. The contributions
to the TMRS SDBF during the years ended September 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $1,182.73, §1,129.16
and $1,010.56, respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each period. The rate was 0.21%
for October through December 2017 and 0.22% for January through September 2018 of the covered payroll
for the period covered by this report. The City has two retirees since adoption of the plan; any
contributions made for retirees which would be considered an other post-employment benefit are
insignificant.

Schedule of Contribution Rates
{RETIREE - only portion of the rate)

Annual Actual
Required Contribution Percentage
Plan Year Contribution Made of ARC
Ending Rate Rate ntributed
2015 0.01% 0.01% 100%
2016 0.01% 0.01% 100%
2017 0.01% 0.01% 100%
ther Post- nt Benefit (OPEB) Liabili

The City’s OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions:

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases 3.5% to 10.5% including inflation

Discount rate 3.31%

Retirees’ share of benefit-related costs 30

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension Trust

and accounted for under reporting requirements under GASB
Statement No. 68

Mortality rates — service retirees RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied
by 103% and projected on a fully generational basis with
scale BB.

Morntality rates - disabled retirees RP2000 Combined Martality Table with Btue Collar Adjustment
with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied
by [03% with a 3 year set-forward for both males and females.
The rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale
BB to account for future mortality improvements subject to
the 3% floor.

The discount rate was based on the Fidelity Index’s “20-Year Municipal GO AA Index” rate as of
December 31, 2017. The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014,

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - beginning of year 5 21,507
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,201
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 835
Change of benefit terms -
Differences between expected and actual experience o
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 2,253
Benefit payments {55)
Net changes — 4234
Total OPEB Liability - end of year s 2511
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Lability to Changes in the Discount Rate
1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(2.31%) {3.31%) {4.31%)
Total OPEB liability 5 31458 § 25741 3 21,254



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018
PEB E Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Relate B
OPEB Expense:
Service cost s 1,201
Interest on Total OPEB Liability 835
Change of benefit terms -
Employer administrative costs =

Recognition of deferred outflows/inflows of resources:
Differences between expected and actual experience -
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 324

Total OPEB expense 5 2,360
Deferred (inflows)/Ouiflows or Resources:

Deferred Inflows of Deferred Outflows

Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
economic experience $ - $ -
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 1,929.00
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date December 31, 2017 = 873.19
Total $ - § 2,802.19

$873.19 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability for the year
ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB wil! be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended Dec 31:
2018 $ 32400
2019 324.00
2020 324.00
2021 324.00
2022 324.00
Thereafier ___ 309.00
Total § 1,929.00

#
11. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors end omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in a public entity
risk poo) managed by the Texas Municipal League whereby the risk is pooled with other entities.
Participation in this pool allows the City to share liability, crime, motor vehicle and property damage risks.
The Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the Pool) allows the City to manage risk by purchasing property,
liability, and workers compensation insurance through the Texas Municipal League. The Pool provides
property, liability and workers' compensation coverage for certain governmental entities of the State of
Texas. Member entities include municipalities, housing authorities, councils of governments, hospital
districts, water districts and tax appraisal districts. The Pool consists of five separate funds: the Workers®
Compensation Fund, the Liability Fund, the Property Fund, the Reinsurance Fund and the Stability Fund.
The financial results of these coverages are accounted for in separate funds by the Pool.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

The Texas Workers’ Compensation Fund Joint Insurance Fund (the Workers’ Compensation Fund)
provides coverage that conforms to the workers’ compensation law of Texas. As part of the coverage, the
Poo! provides risk management services with emphasis on loss control.

The City purchased $1,000,000 liability coverage and approximately $3,263,249 property coverage. For
insured programs there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settlement amounts
have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three preceding years.

The premiums paid for Workers' Compensation Coverage are based on estimated payroll amounts and are
subject to fluctuations based upon an audit of payroll costs by the insurer. Any increase or decrease is not
expected to be material to the financial statements.

12. Property Tax

Property taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed (appraised) value listed as of the prior January |
for all real and business personal property located in the City. Taxable assessed value represents the
appraisal value less applicable exemptions authorized by law. In Texas, ceniral appraisal districts are
required under the Property Tax Code to access all property within the appraisal district on the basis of
100% of its market value and are prohibited from applying any assessment ratios. The value of property
within the appraisal district must be reviewed every three years. The City may challenge appraised values
established by the appraisal district through various appeals, and, if necessary, legal action, The Lubbock
Central Appraisal District establishes appraised values at 100% of estimated fair market value and collects
property taxes for the City. The 2017 certified tax roli for the City was $137,160,636.

Taxes are due on October | immediately following the levy date and are delinquent after the following
January 31. Tax liens are automatic on January 1 of each year. The tax lien is part of a lawsuit for property
that can be filed any time after taxes become delinquent (February 1). The 2017 tax rate was $0.612933
per $100 valuation. The tax rate was allocated $0.538812 for maintenance and operations and $0.074121
for principal and interest on debt. Current tax collections for the year ended September 30, 2018 were
99.76% of the tax levy.

In the governmental fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as receivables and deferred
revenues at the time the tax levy is billed. Revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are
collected. Additional amounts estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment of
obligations incurred during the fiscal year and therefore susceptible to accrual in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles have been recognized as revenue.

13. Individual Fund Disclosures

The water and sewer system of the City services approximately 576 properties. During the year ended
September 30, 2018 the City sold approximately 70,118,000 gallons of water.

The City provides solid waste pickup and mosquito spraying services for its citizens with revenues and
expenses recorded in the enterprise fund. The City contracts with a private company for waste collection
and disposal. This waste is disposed of at the City of Lubbock’s regional landfill or a landfill owned by a
private company where the City is charged a fee based on weight to dispose of its waste. These fees will
cover the City’s share of any post-closure expenses and thus no provision is made in the financial
statements for future costs associated with the landfill. Mosquito spraying is done on an as needed basis.
Citizens are charzed a monthly fee to cover the costs of these services.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Capital Assets

September 30, 2018

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings

Streets and infrastructure
Improvements

Vehicles

Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Streets and infrastructure
Impravements

Vehicles

Equipment

Total accumutated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated,
net

Govemnmental activities capital assets,
net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated
Water and sewer system

Buildings

Furniture

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer system

Buildings
Furniture
Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net § 2,085.686.43
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Balance Transfers and Transfers and Balance

10/1/2017 Additions Retirements 9/30/2018
46,230.00 § 3 3 46,230.00
46,230.00 - - 46,230.00
622,650.38 11,627.07 634,277.45
2,908,921.20 85,077.58 2,993,998.78
744,884,134 744,884.34
747,341.77 38,980.00 (56,%07.00) 729,414.77
419,780.47 19,665.52 (23,600.00) 415,845.99
5,443,578.16 155,350.17 (80,507.00) 5,518,421.33
128,433.57 18,732.76 147,166.33
2,233,395.19 61,972.38 2,295,367.57
553,806.42 36,457.99 590,264.41
631,401.97 49,562.18 (56,907.00) 624,057.15
370,577.77 12,789.63 (23,600.00) 360,767.40
3.918,614,92 179,514.94 (80,507.00) 4,017,622.86
1,524,963.24 (24,164.77) - 1,500,798.47
$ 1,571,193.24 § (24,164.77) § - $ 1,547,028.47
$ 471535885 - $ (4,500.00) $ 4,710,858.85
306,800.47 11,627.07 318,427.54
23,039.33 23,039.33
5,045,198.65 11,627.07 (4,500.00) 5,052,325.72
2,959,512.22 123,425.29 (4,500.00) 3,078,437.51
- 7,860.69 7,960.69
- 2,303.93 2,303.93
2,959,512.22 133,689.91 (4,500.00) 3,088,702.13
5_2,085,686.43 $ (122,062.84) § - $ 1,963,623.59




TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 23,742.88
Public safety - police department 29,687.89
Public safety - fire department 18,927.24
Public works - street department 104,524.94
Emergency operations 1,902.14
Library 729.85
Total depreciation expense -- governmental activities 3 17951494

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer system 5 133,689.91
Total depreciation expense -- business-type activities $__133,689.91

15. Debt Refunding

The City issued the Series 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds on November 18, 2010 for $980,000.
The proceeds were used to retire the Series 2001 Certificates of Obligation and to pay for the issvance costs
of the Series 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. These refunding bonds were issued to reduce the
total debt service over the next 10 years by approximately $70,000. This results in a net present value
benefit (difference between the present value of the debt service payment on the old and the new debt) of
$57,106.66.

16, Budget

The City's budget contained expenditures in excess of revenues for the year ended September 30, 2018.
The excess expenditures are covered by drawing on reserves and transfers from the enterprise fund. The
City Ceuncil also approved any expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts for each account on the books.

17. Subsequent Events

Management has performed an analysis of the activities and iransactions subsequent to September 30, 2018
to determine the need for any adjustments to and/or disclosures within the audited financial statements for
the year ended September 30, 2018. Management has performed their analysis through November 26,
2018, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

18. New Accounting Principle and Restatement of Prior Year Net Position

Effective October |, 2017, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB Statement
No. 75). The statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The statement covers
death benefits with coverage for retirees and requires reporting of the long term obligation and the deferred
outflows/inflows of resources related to this benefit. Due to the adoption of GASB No. 75 the beginning
net position has been restated as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Beginning Net Position § 1,072,176.79 § 2,797472.79 § 3,969,649.58
Adjustment to record total
OPEB liabilicy (18,210.14) (4,133.67) (22,343.81)

Beginning Net Position - restated $ _1,153,966.65 $ 2,793,339.12 § 3,947,305.77
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Revenues
Property taxes
Penaltles end interest
Pennits
Franchise fees
Library revenue
R V storage revenus
Municipal court revenue
Tax cestificates
Interest revenue
Sales tax revenue
Grant revenue
Miscellaneous

Total Revenves

BExpendilures
Curment:
Generzl govemment
Operations
Clity court
Public safety - police depariment
Public ssfety - fire department
Public works - street department
Library
Emergency operations
Capital outlay
Total Expendilures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expendltures

Other Flnancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Tolal Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, Oclober 1
Fund Balance, September 30

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financiel slalements.

TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018

Budpeted Amounis Actual Amounts
Varence With
Adjustments Aclual on Final Budget
lo Budgetary Budgetary Positive
Original Elnal Aclual Basls Total {Nenative)
§ 700,00000 $ 700,000.00 $ 738,445.98 § 73544598 § 23644598
3,000.00 3,000.00 3,350.92 3,350.92 350.92
5.500.00 5,500.00 6,719.95 §,719.85 1,219.85
23,700.00 23,700.00 31,568.51 31,569.51 7,869.51
8,000.00 8,000.00 7.470.00 7.470.00 (530.00)
13,000.00 13,000.00 16,593.51 18,593.51 3,503.51
500.00 500.00 613.10 813.10 113.10
100.00 100.00 299.00 299.00 199.00
2,500.00 2,500.00 3,642.35 3,542.35 1,042.35
9,000.00 9,000.00 12,486.83 12,486.83 3,466.83
10,000.00 10,000.00 10,300.00 10,300.00 300.00
5,700.00 5,700.00 44.917.05 44.917.05 39,217.05
781,000.00 78100000  874,308.20 - 874,308.20 93,308.20
379,201.00 383,441,268 370,779.20 370,779.20 12,662.06
188,889,00 186,589.00 173,266.01 173,289.01 13,619.99
5,800.00 5,600.00 3,946.52 3,946.52 1,853.48
290,285.00 290,285.00 270,578.45 270,578.45 18,708.55
55,897.00 60,940.68 54,262.29 54,262.29 8,678.39
100,317.00 100,317.00 66,490.87 66,490.87 13,828.13
33,426.00 33,573.09 36,216.80 38,216.80 {2.642.51)
3,000.00 3,000.00 147490 1,471.90 1,528.10
163,000.00 174,708.89 155,350.17 155,350.17 19,350.82
1,297,705.00 1,238,755.02 1,152.365.01 - 1,152,365.01 86,380.01
(436,705.00) {457,755.02} (278.056.81) - {278,056.81) 176,6908.21
104877.00 _ 104.877.00 _ 275.000.00 - 27500000 _ 170,123.00
104,877.00 104,877.00 275,000,00 - 275,000.00 170,123.00
(331,828.00)  (352,678.02) (3,056.81) - (3.058.81)  349,821.21
91,123.15 §1,123.15 91,123.15 01,123.15
$ (240.704.85) S (261.754.87) § 83.086.34 § - $ 8806634 § 349.821.21
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

(unaudited)
Calendar Year
2014 2015 2016 2017

Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 51485 § 52228 § 58412 § 61,357
Interest {(on the Total Pension Liability} 85,962 104,470 110,872 121,065
Changes of benefit terms 5 5 - -
Difference between expected and actual experience {4,679) (32,917) 10,383 (12,487)
Change of assumptions - 47,799 - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions {19.564) (24,547) (24,547) (35,722)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 123,234 147,033 155,120 134,213
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 1,356,347 1.478,581 1,625,614 _ 1,780,734
Total Penslon Liability - Ending (a) $1,478,581 $£1,625614 $1,780,734 $1,914,947
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer $ 64870 § 71479 $§ 75041 $ 83,684
Contributions - employee 28,981 29,703 31,264 32,753
Net investment income 41,427 1,239 62,002 147,029
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions {19,564) (24,547) (24,547) (35,722)
Administrative expense (432) (754) (699) (761)
Other {36) {37) {38) (39)
Net Change in Plan Fiduclary Net Position 115,248 77,083 143,023 226,944
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 723,851 839,097 916,180 1,059,203
Plan Fiduclary Net Position - Ending (b) $ 839,097 $ 916,180 $1,069.203 §$ 1,286,147
Net Penslon Liability - Ending (a) -{b) $ 639484 § 709434 § 721531 § 628,800
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability 56.75% 56.36% 59.48% 67.16%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 483,020 3 495055 $ 521,071 $ 545883
Net Pension Liability as a Parcentage

of Covered Employee Payroll 132.39% 143.30% 138.47% 115.19%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
Schedule of Pension Contributions
(unaudited)

Fiscal Year End
9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2017 9/30/2018

Acluarially Determined Contribution $ 70,339.27 § 73,80264 $ 82,136.04 § 84,791.32
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 70,338.27 73.802.64 82,136.04 84,791.32
Contribution deficlency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Covered employee payroll $490,102.60 $512,101.94 §544,852.06 $ 544,305.84

Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll 14.35% 14.41% 15.08% 15.58%

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
Schedule of Changes in OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

{unaudited)

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost

Interest {on the Total Pension Liability)

Changes of benefit terms

Difference between expected and actual experience

Change of assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning

Total OPEB Liablifity - Ending

Covered Employee Payroll

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee Payroll

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Calendar Year
2017

$ 1,201
835

2,263

(55)

4,234
21,507

$_ 25741
$ 545,883
4.72%



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS
Schedule of OPEB Contributions

{unaudited)
FYE
9/30/2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 118273
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 1,182.73
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ =
Covered employee payroll $ 544,305.84
Contributions as a percentage of covered
employee payroll 0.22%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia! statements.
49



TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Budgetary Control - Policy and Practice

The City operates an a twelve-month fiscal year which begins on October 1. The City Administrator
prepares the budget under the supervision of the Mayor and the City Council. The Mayor is the budget
officer and submits a budget of estimated revenues and expenditures to the City Council. Upon receipt of
the budget estimates the City Council holds a budget workshop and a public budget hearing. Prior to
October 1, the budget is legally enacted through approval by the City Council. Once approved, the Council
may amend the legally adopted budget by a majority vote when unexpected modifications are required in
estimated revenues and appropriations. In addition to the legally adopted budget the Council approves
payment of expenditures at each monthly Council meeting. Unused appropriations for all annually
budpeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis and
include debt principal retirements and capital outlays as expenses. Additionally, the Enterprise Fund does
not include depreciation as a budgetary expense.

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis, Revenues are budgeted by
source. Expenditures of governmental funds and proprietary funds are also budgeted on a detailed line item
basis. Management may at its discretion transfer appropriations between line item amounts so long as the
total budgeted appropriation is not changed. The total budget constitutes the legal level of control.
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the total levels. Budget revisions at this level are subject to
final review by the City Council.

The City prepares its budget on a government wide basis; that is the funds are not separated and budgeted
individually. The budget for the year ended September 30, 2018 provided for expenditures that exceeded
revenues by $278,057.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule, included in the required supplementary information presents a
comparison of budgetary data to actual results of aperations for the General Fund, for which an annual
operating budget is legally adopted. This fund utilizes the same basis of accounting for both budgetary
purposes and actual results.
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TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Contributions

Valuation Date:
Notes

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31
and become effective in January 13 months later.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amartization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:
Notes

Entry Age Normal

Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

19 years

10 year smoothed market; 15% soft corridor

2.5%

3.50% to 10.50% including inflation

6.75%

Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of benefits.
Last updated for the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the
period 2010-2014

RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected
on a fully generational basis with scale BB

There were no benefit changes during the year.

51



ACTION ITEM: #6
Online Bill Pay



Online Utility Bill Pay Options

Initial Cost To Set Up {One Time)

Tyler Annual Fee $480.00
Tyler Service Fee $800.00

Total Costs $1,280.00

Annual Recurring Costs
Tyler Annual Fee $480.00

Other Fees and Costs

On every online bill pay or phone transaction that will occur, there is automatic $1.25
municipal online fee that goes to Tyler Technology that is paid by the resident.

The City currently charges individuals who pay with their credit card a 3% processing fee
charge.

There is a 3" Party, ETS that charges the city currently to process credit card payments.

Staff Recommendations

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Everyone who pays the City with a credit card will pay 3%, even if they have credit card
drafts.

City employees will no longer take credit card payments over the phone like we have in
the past. (Only about 5 or 6 individuals do this on a monthly basis)

Everyone who utilizes the new bill pay online system or the automated phone system
will be charged 3%, plus the $1.25 fee that goes to Tyler Technology.

If residents currently pay their bill through a bank draft where they have provided us a
voided check, they will not be affected.

if a resident logs in and pays through the automated system online or via phone with
bank account information, they will be charged the 3% fee, plus the $1.25 fee that goes
to Tyler Technology.



Examples of what a payment would look like with the online utility system or automated
phone system for the resident:

A resident pays $250.00 in utilities, they would pay the following:

Utility Bill $250.00
City ProcessingFee § 8.75
(3%)

Tyler Technology Fee S 1.25

$ 258.75

Additional costs for convenience to pay online or phone are $8.75.



ACTION ITEM: #7

Open Swim Variance



RESOLUTION No: 010819

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON AUTHORIZING A VARIANCE TO APPROVE
SWIMMING IN THE LAKE FOR A TRIATHLON IN RANSOM CANYON TO TAKE PLACE ON __May
19, 2019.

WHEREAS, the Town of Ransom Canyon is a community that embraces physical fitness, athletic
training, and nutrition;

WHEREAS, the Buffalo Springs Lake Triathlon {BSLT) Inc. is a safe, well planned, competitive
race for triathletes in the community and communities throughout the country; and

WHEREAS, triathletes throughout the country compete in an open water lake swim, cycling,
and a running competition; and

WHEREAS, the BSLT Triathlon Inc. is a 501(c)3 organization that supports charities such as the
M5M Foundation, to support chiidren in need of food and nutrition, and the Family Guidance
and Outreach Center of Lubbock which focuses on parenting, wellness, life skills, and anger
management classes for families, daycare workers, and educators; and

WHEREAS, the BSLT Triathlon Inc. must provide the City with a copy of their liability insurance
policy that provides comprehensive insurance coverage for sanctioned events, including
coverage to protect volunteers, participants, and the public, and provides the City with
immunity from any accidents or incidents that could potentially occur on the day of the
triathlon, including injuries, death, and property damage; and

WHEREAS, each participant of the event must sign a “Town of Ransom Canyon Liability Release
Form,” to release any liability and to indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Ransom Canyon,
Texas for personal injuries {including death) and property losses or damages occasioned by, or
in conjunction with any activity or accommodations for said use of the Town of Ransom Canyon
premises; and

WHEREAS, the organization (BSLT Triathlon Inc.) sponsoring the triathlon must contact the
Property Owner’s Association for permission to access the private property that borders the
lake.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF RANSOM CANYON, TEXAS;

1. The Town of Ransom Canyon authorizes a variance to approve swimming on the lake for
a triathlon in the City limits to take place on _May 19, 2019

PASSED AND APPROVED in Ransom Canyon, Texas, on this the g day of January, 2019,



Mavyor

ATTEST: City Secretary



PRINT DATE: |5/19/2018
CERTIFICATE NUMBER: |20180111580708

AGENCY: o S

Integro USA Inc THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND

dib/a Integro Insurance Brokers CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS CERTIFICATE DOES

2727 Paces Ferry Road. Builting Two, Suite 1500 NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
| Atlanta, GA 30339 ARy
| 678-324-3300 (Phone), 678-324-3303 (Fax)
NAMED INSURED: INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE:

' ———— | VERAGE:
;’852“5 B";;“';’n'i'g ggi‘;’ad" Marli Greer | INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Ins. Co. NAIC #: 18058
Colorado Springs CO 80919-2401% i INSURER B Philadelph-a Indemnity Ins. Co. NAIC #: 18058

EVENT INFORMATION:

BUFFMAN & SQUEAKY AND THE DOG HOUSE SPRINT (5/20/2018 - 5/20/2018)
|POLICY/COVERAGE INFORMATION: B

| THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY
REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE
INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. AGGREGATE
LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID CLAIMS.

INS|TYPE OF INSURANCE:  |POLICY NUMBER(S):| EFFECTIVE: | EXPIRES: |LIMITS: o |
A |GENERAL LIABILITY — 2
| X Occumenca |PHPK1738697 122017 | jaany | GENERAL AGGREGATE (Applies PerEvent)  $2,000,000
x_ Parlicipant Legal Liab'-lit_y i | | EACH OCCURRENC!E__ $4,000,000

DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Each Occ) $1,000,000

MEDICAL EXPENSE (Any ane person) - EXCLUDED

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY - $1,000,000

PRODUCTS-COMPIOP AGG ~ 52,000000

B |UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY ) - - i
X ovaence Prossonts (1ot [1anaeie | eacw occummence 51000000 |
i ] ! AGGREGA}II_E (Applies Per Event) $10.000,000 I

|DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS:

| Coverage applies (o the USA Triathlon sanctioned or approved event specified on this certificate.

The certificate holder 1s an addilional insured as per form PI-AM-002° Additional Insured - Certificate Holders.
The General Liability policy is primary as per Form CGO001 (04/13).

The Genera! Liability policy contains Form CG2404 (05/09): Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others fo Us. but only as required by written contract or
agreement executed by the named insured prior to an occurrence resulting in a loss or a claim |

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: I NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: -
Should any of the above described policies be cancalled bafore the expiration date thereof,
g:tijg sﬁﬂg:{?ﬁ%fyé:ﬁg 100 | notica will be delivered in accordance with the palicy provisions.

e | AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

{ A_/\_/‘\




WARNING: READ CAREFULLY. THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES A RELEASE OF
YOU OF THE RIGHT TO SUE USA TRIATHLON AND OTHER PARTIES. DO } Q;LE@IHMEEEEMEHI_LLHL EiSiQLLHAEEEEﬂD_H_lH_[LS
ENTIRETY. SEEK THE ADYICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL IF YOU ARE UNSURE OF ITS EFFECT.

USAT

USA TRIATHLON WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIABILITY,
ASSUMPTION OF RISK AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT

IN CONSIDERATION of USA Triathion {“USAT") allowing me to participate in any USAT sanctioned event (the “Event” or “Events”) as either a member of
USAT orthrough the issuance of a single event license or permit; |, for myself, and on behalf of my spouse, children, parents, guardians, heirs and next of kin,
and any legal and personal representatives, executors, adminisirators, successors and assigns, hereby agree to and make the following contractual
representations pursuant o this Waiver and Release of Liability, Assumption of Risk and Indemnity Agreement (the “Agreement”);

1. I'hereby represent that (i) | amin good health and in proper physical condition to participate in the Event; and {ii) 1 am not under the influence of alcohol or
any illicit or prescription drugs which would in any way impair my ability Lo safely participate in the Event. | agree that it Is my sole responsibility to
determing whether | am sufficiently fit and healthy enough to participate in the Event.

2. lunderstand and acknowledge the physical and mental rigers associated with triathlon, duathlon, or other multi-sport events, and realize that running,
bicycling, swimming and other portions of such Events are inherently dangerous and represent an extreme test of a person's physical and mental limils. |
understand that participation involves risks and dangers which include, without limitation, the potential for serious bodily injury, permanent disability,
paralysis and death, loss or damage to property; exposure to extreme conditions and circumstances; accidents, illness, contact or collision with other
participants, spectators, vehicles or other natural ar manmade objects; dangers arising from adverse weather conditions; imperfect course conditions;
water, road and surface hazards; equipment failure; inadequale safely measures; participants of varying skill levels; situations beyond the immediate
contral of the Event Organizers; and other undefined harm or damage which may not be readily foreseeable, and other presently unknown risks and
dangers (*Risks"). | undersiand thal these Risks may be caused in whole or in part by my own actions or inaclions, the actions or inactions of others
participating in the Event, or the acts, inaction or negligence of the Released Parlies defined below, and | hereby expressly assume all such Risks and
responsibility for any damages, liabilities, losses or expenses which | incur as a result of my participation in the Event.

3. | agree tobefamiliar with and abide by the Rules and Regulalions established for the Event, including but not limited (o the Competlitive Rules adopled by
USAT and the Guide to Prohibited Substances and Prohibited Methods of Doping adapled by the United States Anti-Doping Agency. | also accept sole
responsibility for my own conduct and actions while participaling in the Event, and the condition and adequacy of my equipment.

4. |hereby Release, Waive and Covenant Not to Sue, and further agree to Indemnify, Defend and Hold Harmless the following parties: USAT, the Event
Organizars and Promoters, Race Directors, Sponsoers, Advertisers, Host Cities, Local Organizing Committees, Venues and Property Owners upon which
the Event takes place, Law Enforcement Agencies and other Public Entities providing supporl for the Event, and each of their respeclive parent,
subsidiary and affiliated companies, officers, direclors, pariners, shareholders, members, agents, employees and volunteers (Individually and
Collectively, the “Released Parties” or “Event Organizers”), with respect to any liability, claim(s), demandys), cause(s) of action, damage(s), loss or
expense (including court costs and reasonable attorneys fees) of any kind or nature (“LiabHity”) which may arise out of, result from, or relate to my
participation in the Event, including claims for Liability caused in whole or in part by the negligence of the Released Parties. | further agree that if, despite
this Agreement, |, or anyone on my behalf, makes a claim for Liability against any of the Released Parties, | will indemnify, defend and hold harmless
each of the Released Parties from any such Liability which any may be incumed as the result of such claim.

I hereby warrant that | have read this Agreement carefully, understand its terms and condilions, acknowledge that [ will be giving up substantial legal rights by
signing it (including the rights of the minor, my spouse, children, parents, guardians, heirs and next of kin, and any legal and personal representatives,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns), acknowledge that | have signed this Agreement freely and voluntarily, without any inducement, assurance
or guarantee, and intend for my signature to serve as confirmation of my complete and unconditional acceptance of the terms, conditions and provisions of this
Agreement. This Agreement represents the complete underslanding between the parlies regarding these issues and no oral representations, stalements or
inducements have been made apart from this Agreement. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unlawful, void, orfor any reason unenforceable, then
that provision shall be deemed severable from this Agreement and shall not affect the validity and enforceability of any remaining provisions.

PRINTED NAME OF PARTICIPANT: AGE: DATE OF BIRTH: / /

PARTICIPANTS SIGNATURE: DATE:

As the Parent and/cr Legal Guardian to the minor identified above, | hereby accept and agree to all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement in
connection with the minor's participation in the Eveni(s). I, despite this Agreement, i, or anyone on the minor's behalf, makes a claim for Liability
against any of the Released Parties, | will indemnily, defend and hold harmiess each of the Released Partles from any such Liabilfties which any
may be incurred as the result of such claim.

PARENT/GUARDIAN SIGNATURE (required if participant is under the age of t8):

DATE:

Modified 11/07



